
 
 

 
 
 
18 June 2020 
 
 
To: Councillors Critchley, Hunter and R Scott  

 
The above members are requested to attend the:  
 

LICENSING PANEL 
 

Friday, 26 June 2020 at 10.00 am 
To be held via Zoom meeting available online at 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KhctOMv0wSg 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN   
 

 To appoint a Chairman for the meeting. 
 

2  DECLARATION OF INTEREST - LICENSING   
 

 Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in 
doing so state:- 
 
(1) the type of interest concerned 
 
(2) the nature of the interest concerned; and 
 
(3) whether they have or have not sat on a Planning Committee which has previously 
considered a planning application in respect of a licensed premises which is also subject 
to consideration for a premises licence as part of the agenda for this meeting. 
 
If any Member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact 
the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting. 
 
(Members are asked to also pay particular attention to the guidance sheet on interests 
supplied with the agenda). 

 
3  PROCEDURE FOR THE MEETING   

 
 The Chairman of the Panel will summarise the procedure and announce the equal 

maximum amount of time for each party to speak for the hearing. 

Public Document Pack



 
A. Items 1 and 4 (b) will be undertaken in private session by the Panel and not in 
the Meeting Room.  
B. Items 2, 3, 4(a) and 4(c) will be recommended to the Panel to be held in public. 
C.         The Panel may decide to exclude the public from all or part of a hearing where it 
considers that the public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the 
hearing, or that part of the hearing, taking place in public. (This includes a party and 
any person assisting or representing a party) 

 
4  APPLICATION FOR A NEW BINGO PREMISES LICENCE - MERKUR SLOTS 40 ABINGDON 

STREET, BLACKPOOL, FY1 1DA  (Pages 1 - 28) 
 

 To consider an application for a new bingo premises licence for Merkur Slots, 40 
Abingdon Street, Blackpool, FY1 1DA. 

 
 

Venue information: 
 
First floor meeting room (lift available), accessible toilets (ground floor), no-smoking building. 
 

Other information: 
 

For queries regarding this agenda please contact John Greenbank, Senior Democratic 
Governance Adviser, Tel: 01253 477229, e-mail john.greenbank@blackpool.gov.uk 
 

Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the 
Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk. 

 

http://www.blackpool.gov.uk/


 

Report to: LICENSING PANEL 
 

Relevant Officer: Sarah Chadwick, Licensing Officer 

Date of Meeting : 
 

26 June 2020 

 

APPLICATION FOR A NEW BINGO PREMISES LICENCE – MERKUR 
SLOTS, 40 ABINGDON STREET, BLACKPOOL, FY1 1DA 
 

1.0 
 

Purpose of the report: 
 

1.1 
 
 

To consider an application for a new Bingo Premises Licence under the Gambling Act 2005 
for Merkur Slots, 40 Abingdon Street, Blackpool, FY1 1DA. 
 

2.0 
 
2.1 

Recommendation(s): 
 
The panel are requested to determine the application. 

 
3.0 
 

Reasons for recommendation(s): 

3.1 
 

This application must be determined by a panel. 
 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council? 
 

No 

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? 
 

Yes 

3.3 
 

Other alternative options to be considered: 
 
None, once an application is submitted and representations received it must be 
considered by the Licensing Panel. 

  

4.0 Background Information 
 

4.1 
 
 
4.2 
 
 

On 17 March 2020 the Licensing Service received an application from Cashino Gaming Ltd 
for a new Bingo Premises Licence for Merkur Slots, 40 Abingdon Street, Blackpool. 
 
The application requests the licence to be granted for the default hours for a bingo 
premises, i.e. 09.00 to midnight, for permitted gaming (bingo). There are no 
restrictions on the hours in which gaming machines may be made available for use. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 
4.3 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
In the application Cashino Gaming Limited are described as operating “a national 
estate of licensed bingo arcades which include the provision of Bingo Plus and Bingo 
Express terminals.” 
 
Two representations have been received from interested parties who operate 
businesses in the vicinity of the proposed premises who have expressed concerns 
about the impact of the proposed premises on vulnerable persons in the town 
centre. 
 

 
Local policy considerations 
 
As the representations raise concerns in relation to vulnerable persons, section 4.8 – 
General standards for all gambling premises - is relevant: 
 
“High standards are expected from operators of gambling premises within the 
Borough to ensure the promotion of the licensing objectives. The licensing authority 
will place a high priority on social responsibility. In exercising its statutory powers, 
the authority will have due regard, where relevant, to the need to: 

 Prevent gambling related problems in individuals and groups at risk of gambling 
addiction; 

 Promote informed and balanced attitudes, behaviours and policies towards 
gambling and gamblers by both individuals and by communities; and  

 Protect vulnerable groups from gambling related harm. 
The licensing authority will consider, in relation to any particular premises, whether 
any special considerations apply to the protection of vulnerable persons. Such 
considerations need to be balanced by the authority’s objective to aim to permit the 
use of premises for gambling.” 
 
It should be noted that complaints about nuisance cannot be resolved through the 
Gambling Act 2005. 
 
National policy considerations 
 
5.18 Licensing authorities need to consider, in relation to particular premises, 
whether any special considerations apply in relation to the protection of vulnerable 
persons. This could be a local risk that is reflected in the licensing authority’s policy 
statement. Any such considerations need to be balanced against the authority’s 
objective to aim to permit the use of premises for gambling. 
 
5.31 Licensing authorities should not turn down applications for premises licences 
where relevant objections can be dealt with through the use of conditions. In 
determining applications for premises licences and permits, a licensing authority may 

Page 2



 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

request as much information as it requires to satisfy itself that all the requirements 
set out at s.153 of the Act are met. 
 
 
Observations 
 
When considering applications made under the Gambling Act the licensing 
authority’s primary obligation is to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far 
as it thinks that is: 

 In accordance with the relevant codes of practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission; 

 In accordance with the guidance issued by the Gambling Commission; 

 Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and 

 In accordance with the Council’s statement of licensing policy 
 
Further to the representations being received, on 28 May 2020 the applicant’s 
solicitors, Poppleston Allen, provided some comments by email in relation to the 
concerns raised and gave further information about the operator, Cashino Gaming 
Limited. A request was made to determine the application without the need for a 
hearing on the grounds that the representations made “will certainly not influence 
the Authority's determination of the application” as per S162 of the Gambling Act 
2005. That request was declined in favour of the application being determined by a 
Licensing Panel hearing. 
A copy of that email is attached. 
 
There are a number of mandatory and default conditions which attach to a bingo 
premises licence if granted: 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 

1. A notice stating that no person under the age of 18 years is permitted to play 
bingo on the premises shall be displayed in a prominent place at every entrance 
to the premises.  

2. No customer shall be able to enter the premises directly from any other premises 
in respect of which one of the following permissions has effect – 
(a) a casino premises licence; 
(b) an adult gaming centre premises licence; 
(c) a betting premises licence other than a track premises licence; and 

3. (1) This paragraph shall apply where children or young persons or both are 
permitted by the licence holder to enter the premises, and Category B or C 
gaming machines are made available for use on the premises.  
(2) Any area of the premises to which category B and C gaming machines are 
located – 

Page 3



a. shall be separated from the rest of the premises by a physical barrier which is 
effective to prevent access other than by an entrance designed for the purpose; 
b. shall be supervised at all times to ensure children or young persons or both do 
not enter the area; and 
c. shall be arranged in such a way that ensures all parts of the area can be 
observed by the persons mentioned in sub-paragraph (3). 
(3) The reference to supervision in this paragraph means supervision by – 
a. one or more persons whose responsibilities include ensuring children or young 
persons or both do not enter the area; or 
b. closed circuit television which is monitored by one or more persons whose 
responsibilities include ensuring that children or young persons or both do not 
enter the area. 
(4) A notice stating that no person under the age of 18 years is permitted to enter 
the area shall be displayed in a prominent place at the entrance to any area of 
the premises in which Category B or C gaming machines are made available for 
use.  

4. (1) In the case of a charge for admission to the premises, a notice of that charge 
shall be displayed in a prominent place at the principal entrance to the premises. 
(2) In the case of any other charges in respect of gaming, a notice setting out the 
information in sub-paragraph (3) shall be displayed at the main point where 
payment for the charge is to be made.  
(3) The notice in sub-paragraph (2) shall include the following information – 
a. the cost (in money) of each game card (or set of game cards) payable by an 
individual in respect of a game of bingo; 
b. in respect of each game card (or set of game cards) referred to in paragraph (a) 
the amount that will be charged by way of a participation fee for entitlement to 
participate in that game; and 
c. a statement to the effect that all or part of the participation fee may be waived 
at the discretion of the person charging it. 
(4) The notice may be displayed in electronic form. 
(5) A reference in this paragraph to a charge in respect of gaming does not 
include an amount paid for an opportunity to win one or more prizes in gaming to 
which section 288 of the 2005 Act (meaning of “prize gaming”) applies.  

5. (1) The rules of each type of game that is available to be played the premises 
other than games played on gaming machines shall be made available to 
customers within the premises. 
(2) The condition in sub-paragraph (1) may be satisfied by – 
a. displaying a sign setting out the rules, 
b. making available leaflets or other written material containing the rules, or 
c. running an audio-visual guide to the rules prior to any bingo game being 
commenced. 

6. Any ATM made available for use on the premises shall be located in a place that 
requires any customer who wishes to use it to cease gambling in order to do so. 

 

Page 4



Default Conditions 
 
1. Subject to paragraph 2, no facilities for gambling shall be provided on the 

premises between the hours of midnight and 9am.  
2. The condition in paragraph 1 shall not apply to making gaming machines available 

for use. 
 

4.8 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? 
 

No 

4.9 List of Appendices:  
  

Appendix 4(a) - Application 
Appendix 4(b) - Representation from B Chambers 
Appendix 4(c) - Representation from T Hallam 
Appendix 4(d) - Additional information from applicant’s solicitors (28 
May 2020)  

 

 

5.0 Legal considerations: 
 

5.1 
 

Please see local and national policy in the background information. 
 

6.0 Human Resources considerations: 
 

6.1 
 

None 
 

7.0 Equalities considerations: 
 

7.1 
 

None 
 

8.0 Financial considerations: 
 

8.1 
 

None 
 
 

  
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4(a)

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4(b)

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4(c)

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



From: Richard Bradley <R.Bradley@popall.co.uk>  
Sent: 28 May 2020 16:58 
To: Sarah Chadwick <sarah.chadwick@blackpool.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: Merkur Slots, 40 Abingdon Street, Blackpool, FY1 1DA - Bingo Premises Licence 
Application - Hearing 
 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. 
 
Dear Sarah,  
 
I hope this email finds you well. 
 
I have reviewed the representations received and have provided our comments below. 
 
We note that none of the Responsible Authorities have raised concerns or provided representations 
regarding our client’s proposals, those of most relevance being the Licensing Authority, the local 
police licensing team and Children's Services. 
 
We appreciate that the representations raise general concerns regarding the protection of the 
vulnerable and the possibility that the venue would be used as a 'gathering place' for homeless 
individuals.  However, neither representation provides evidence to support the assumptions and both 
fail to consider our client's proposals and the operational standards implemented to promote the 
Licensing Objectives under the Gambling Act 2005 that mitigate any perceived risk. 
 
Cashino Gaming Limited is a leading national operator of bingo premises with clear and proactive 
policies to promote the Gambling Licensing Objectives.  The Applicant has full authority to provide 
bingo facilities through the grant of an Operating Licence by the Gambling Commission, which has 
approved the measures which have been put in place to ensure that responsible trading is carried out 
in accordance with gambling legislation, the Licensing Objectives and the Licence Conditions and 
Codes of Practice.   The Applicant’s Operating Licence also requires that policies and procedures are 
put into effect, which promote socially responsible gambling.  
 
All Cashino Gaming Limited's licensed premises are strictly adult only and appropriate notification and 
signage is provided on entry and on all marketing material.  Cashino Gaming Limited operates a 
Think 25 policy as standard for all its venues and all employees are trained to request a photographic 
form of identity if they suspect that a customer is under age. 
 
All Merkur Slots premises limit the line of site into venues and all advertising is complaint with the 
Advertising Standards Authority’s CAP and BCAP codes for gambling advertising and the Gambling 
Industry Group for Responsible Gambling Advertising Code.  As such, all premises advertisements do 
not target nor are the designed to appeal to under age individuals and the possibility of viewing 
ambient gambling from the public highway is minimised.  
 
We have provided a copy of Cashino Gaming Limited's Operational Standards document, which 
highlights the extensive security and socially responsible gambling measures applied to Cashino 
Gaming Limited's gambling estate.  A detailed local area risk assessment has also been provided, 
which has been developed in consideration of the local area profile and local crime statistics. 
 
The Applicant provides an annual assurance statement to the Gambling Commission, which is 
designed to identify Company strategy, policy and procedure, which ensures accountability for the 
delivery of the licensing objectives by relevant senior management. The statement provides a concise 
self-assessment of any risks to the Licensing Objectives posed by the operator’s business, how well 
the operator is managing those risks and where it may improve its operation and how it intends to do 
so.  Statements provide operators the opportunity to reflect on their continuing commitment to regular 
operational assessment and excellence. 
 
The Applicant’s national training measures, policies and procedures have been developed to ensure 
that the Licensing Objectives are upheld and have continually proven to be effective and robust with 
no Cashino Gaming Limited bingo premises being subject to review proceedings.  

Appendix 4(d)

Page 25

mailto:R.Bradley@popall.co.uk
mailto:sarah.chadwick@blackpool.gov.uk


 
Paragraph 5.34 of the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities states: 
 
“Licensing authorities should be aware that other considerations such as moral or ethical objections to 
gambling are not a valid reason to reject applications for premises licences. In deciding to reject an 
application, a licensing authority should rely on reasons that demonstrate that the licensing objectives 
are not being, or are unlikely to be met” and that “an authority’s decision cannot be based on dislike of 
gambling, or a general notion that it is undesirable to allow gambling premises in an area (with the 
exception of the casino resolution powers)”.  
 
Paragraph 1.9 of the Council's Gambling Act Statement of Policies and Principles refers to section 
162 of the Gambling Act 2005, which addresses the requirements for hearing to determine any 
application.  The Licensing Authority can determine the application without a hearing under section (3) 
(a) (b) (c) of Section 162 of the Gambling Act 2005 on the basis that the Authority think that the 
representations made under Section 161 of the Gambling Act 2005 are:-     
 
(a).      vexatious; 
(b).      frivolous; or 
(c).      will certainly not influence the Authority's determination of the application. 
 
The representations received (s.162(3)(c)) 'will certainly not influence the Authority's determination of 
the application' and it can be granted without a hearing.  
 
A hearing has the effect of putting the Applicant to the expense of preparing for a hearing, providing 
for advocates to attend and also has the effect of causing the Licensing Authority extra work and 
expense.  More importantly, the valuable time of Committee members is used in attending a hearing 
for an application that should really be granted as there are no grounds upon which it should be 
refused.  In this respect we have regard to the guidance which allows the delegation of 
powers/functions to Licensing Sub Committees or to one or more Officers.  
 
Given the current circumstance and logistical complications in organising a licensing sub-committee 
hearing within a reasonable timeframe following completion of the consultation period, we believe that 
it will be cost effective for the Authority to exercise the powers available to it under the Gambling Act 
2005 in respect of the current application, which should be granted if the matter was determined by 
the Licensing Sub-Committee.     
 
Whilst the current representations address the Licensing Objective of protection of the vulnerable 
from harm associated with gambling, the proposed concerns relate to general harm and do not 
provide evidence to support the perceived risk in respect of the premises proposed operation and the 
standards implemented to mitigate any risk.   
 
The Council may dismiss the representations without stating that it is vexatious but on the grounds 
that it would not influence the determination of the application.   
 
Critically: 
 
1. The Licensing Authority is duty bound to aim to permit licensing applications which it 

considers to comply with the Gambling Commission's Code of Practice and Guidance, the 
Licensing Objectives and the Licensing Authority's Gambling Policy; 

 
2. Consistently with 1 above, the Council has been given a power by Parliament to disregard 

objections and determine applications without a hearing in a number of 
circumstances.  These include where it considers that the application will "certainly not 
influence the authority's determination of the application".  Section 162 (3)(c); and 
 

3. It is noted that this power is wider than a power to disregard representations which do not 
relate to the Licensing Objectives or which are frivolous or vexatious.  The representation may 
be relevant to the Licensing Objectives and may also be neither frivolous or vexatious. Yet if 
the authority considers that the representation will certainly not influence determination it may 
disregard it. It is a merits based decision. 

Page 26



 
We have successfully obtained this favourable outcome for a number of premises licence applications 
throughout the Country with the most recent involving Westminster and Birmingham City Councils.  
 
All the Authority has to do under Section 162 (4) is to notify the interested party as soon as is 
reasonably practicable that it proposes to determine the application in reliance of Section 162 of the 
Gambling Act notifying the particular sub-section be it 3 (a), (b), or (c).   
 
We would like you to consider that the representations received “will certainly not influence the 
authority’s determination of the application” and that the application can therefore be granted without 
a hearing in accordance with S.162(3)(c) of the Gambling 2005. 
 
If the Authority determines that a hearing is still required, I would be grateful for an update as to when 
a hearing may be listed, along with potential dates, and whether it is to be held remotely or in person. 
 
I thank you for your time and consideration and if you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
Kind regards,  
 
Richard 
 
 
 
 
Richard   Bradley  | Associate Solicitor 
  

Poppleston Allen 
 

E:R.Bradley@popall.co.uk  |  T:0115 9487 424  | W:www.popall.co.uk 
  

Nottingham Office: 37 Stoney Street, The Lace Market, Nottingham, NG1 1LS 
  

 

 

  

Authorised and Regulated by the Solicitors Regulation Authority (SRA No: 78244). The professional rules to which we are subject are the 
Solicitors Code of Conduct. These rules can be viewed at www.sra.org.uk. 
This email and the attachments are intended for the above named persons only and may be confidential and privileged. If you receive it in 
error please tell the sender immediately and do not copy, show or distribute them to anyone. Although we have taken steps to ensure that 
this email and its attachments are free from any viruses, it is your responsibility to ensure that viruses do not adversely affect your 
system. Our firm accepts no responsibility or liability for malicious or fraudulent emails purportedly coming from our firm and that it is the 
recipient’s responsibility to ensure that any emails coming from our firm are genuine before replying on anything contained within them. 

 

 

Page 27

mailto:R.Bradley@popall.co.uk
tel:0115%209487%20424
http://www.sra.org.uk/
https://www.popall.co.uk/training/courses/Personal-Licence-Holders-APLH


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 APPLICATION FOR A NEW BINGO PREMISES LICENCE - MERKUR SLOTS 40 ABINGDON STREET, BLACKPOOL, FY1 1DA
	Appendix 4a - Merkur Slots new Bingo PL app 170320
	Appendix 4b - Merkur Slots objection from Abingdon BBQ (B Chambers) recd 060420
	Appendix 4c - Merkur Slots objection from The Bread Basket (Tony Hallam) recd 060420
	Appendix 4d - Merkur Slots - additional info from Pop Allen 280520
	From: Richard Bradley <R.Bradley@popall.co.uk>  Sent: 28 May 2020 16:58 To: Sarah Chadwick <sarah.chadwick@blackpool.gov.uk> Subject: RE: Merkur Slots, 40 Abingdon Street, Blackpool, FY1 1DA - Bingo Premises Licence Application - Hearing





